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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD JANE E. YOUNG

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

May 16,2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

. Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into a subgrant with New Hampshire
Legal Assistance (Vendor #154648-3001) in the amount of $363,271 from the Federal Victim of
Crime Act Grant (VOCA) for the purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime
effective July 1, 2019 upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30,
2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in State Fiscal Year 2020 and is contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget
Office as needed and justified:

02-20-20-201510-5021 SFY 2020

Victims of Crime Act Amount

072-500575, Grants Federal $363,271

EXPLANATION

VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims Fund.
Fines paid by offenders of federal crimes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the Fund is
then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. In 2000, Congress placed a limit on
the distribution of funds. Recently, the limit on the distribution of funds has been increasing. In
FY 2013 the total limit was $730 million, while in FY 2017 the total limit exceeded $2 billion.
Thus, all states, including New Hampshire, have received substantial increases in VOCA funds.
DOJ is the receiving agency for VOCA funds in New Hampshire.

Telephone 60S.271-36S8 • FAX 603.271.2110 • TDD Acceu: Relay NH 1-800-730.2964
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DOJ subgr2ints these funds to agencies providing direct services to victims of crime.
VOCA requires the funds be distributed to agencies providing services in the fields of sexual
assault, domestic abuse and crimes against children. For many years, DOJ has directed VOCA
funds to certain core service providers.

This significant increase in VOCA funds presents an important opportunity for New
Hampshire and for the many dedicated organizations and individuals who work with victims of
crime. Following a careful analysis, DOJ has determined that a portion of the increased VOCA
funds should be allocated to existing core service providers. The distribution of the VOCA funds
was based on a formula to ensure fairness, equality and, most importantly, sustainability to the
current subgrantees. DOJ is also engaged in a Victims' Needs Assessment. The balance of the
increase in VOCA funds will be distributed based on the results of this Needs Assessment.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (NHLA) is a core service provider. The VOCA
subgrant will fund legal advocacy for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking,
trafficking, child abuse, and elder financial exploitation. Attorneys will assist victims in a
variety of family law matters including protective order cases and legal processes for victims of
crime. In addition, NHLA will partner with the Legal Advice and Referral Center (LARC), and
with the New Hampshire Bar Association's Domestic Violence Emergency Project (DOVE), to
providedegal services to domestic violence victims.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your consideration
is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted.

[Gordon L^acDonald
Jyueneral

#2389698



GRANT AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Subreciplent hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identiflcation and Deilnitions.

I.I. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. SubrecipientName

New Hampshire Legal Assistance

1.4. Subreciplent Address

117 North State Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Subreciplent Phone #

(603) 206-2226

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-5021-

072-500575

1.7. Completion Date

09/30/2020

1.8. Grant Limitation

$

363,271

1.9. Grant Ofticer for State Agency

Kathleen B. Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

{603)271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

I.ll. Subreciplent Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Subreciplent Signor 1

Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director

Subreciplent Signature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subreciplent Signor 2 IfApplicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of
on ^ ̂  ' before the undersigned ofTicer, personally appear
satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in t
document in the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

Y\erri»^<A^^
ed the person identified in block 1.12., known to me (or
lock I.ll., and acknowledged that he/she executed this

1.1,3.1. Signature of Notary Public onJusticpofthe Peace BRENOAL QRANT NOtEHyPubfiC
'  ̂ 8WB Of New Hampihire(J My CommteeiooBqjiree January 13.2021

(Seal)

1.13.2. Name & Title of Notary Public or Justice of ̂ e Peace , • ^

1.14. State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

1.16. ̂ proval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: j V ) ' KVW 7— Assistant Attorney General, On:

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

2.SC0PE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block I. I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subreciplent identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subreciplent"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project"). ^ \
Rev 9/2015 Page 1 of 6 Subreciplent Initial(s): ^ if v
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as olherwise specifically provided for herein, the 9.2.
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire.
EFEECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become 9.3.
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.4.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the efTective date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all
reports required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to
the date in block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION QN AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT. 9.5.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT B,
attached hereto. 10.

The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and "the
complete payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature, 11.
incurred by the Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, 11.1.
and the complete, compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State
shall have no liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and 11.1.1
notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all 11.1.2
payments authorized, or actually made, hereunder e.xceed the Grant limitation 11.1.3
set forth in block 1.8 ofthese general provisions. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY StJBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. 11.2.

In connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or 11.2.1
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the EfTective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in 11.2.2
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of
administration, transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials
and services. Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and
other similar documents.

Between the EfTective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often 11.2.3
as the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data 12.
(as that term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters 12.1.
covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions
PERSONNEL

The Subrecipient shall, at its own e.xpense, provide all personnel necessary to 12.2,
perform the Project, The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed
and authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, 12.3.
subgrantee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project, to hire any person \\ho has a contractual
relationship with the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event 12.4.
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA'RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and 13.
things developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or
developed by reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies,
reports, files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished,
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Between the EfTective Date and the Completion Dale the Subrecipient shall
grant to the Stale, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data
for examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any
other purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the EfTective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obliptions of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become
available. If ever, and shall have the right to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the dale of the notice; and if the
Event of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTective two
(2) days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set ofT against any other obligation the Slate may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.
TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these genera!
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and
including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No olTicer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who e.xercises any functions or responsibilities in the
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall
participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which afTects his or her

Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date:
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14.

15.

16.

17,

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

19.

20.

personal interest or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association 17.2,
in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have
any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the
proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or
subgrantee of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and 18,
are neither agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any
of its officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees,
shall have authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits,
workmen's compensation or emoluments provided by the Slate to its
employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgrantcd by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its offcers and employees, by
or on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out 21.
of (or which may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of
this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or 23.
shall require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project
work to obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the
following insurance;
Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,(XK) per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$5(X),(XK) for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the Slate.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
hereof after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No e.\press waiver of any Event
of Default shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of
waiver shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all
of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the
Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to
have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail,
postage prepaid, in a United States Post OITice addressed to the parties at the
addresses first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval
of such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency,
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS This Agreement shall bc
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a pan of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the panies hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be e.\ecuted in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C
hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OFSERVICES-

1. The New Hampshire Legal Assistance as Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the

New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services provided

to victims of crime in compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and scope of
work as outlined in the Subrecipient's state fiscal year 2020 VOCA grant application.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days

following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later

than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of

compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly

report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both

state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this

office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and

compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such

desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 or Tanya.Pitman@doj.nh.gov.

Page 4 of 6

Subrecipient Initials

Date



EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULEATERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure

reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subrecipient's account

receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not

exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $363,271 of the

total Grant Limitation from 7/1/19 to 6/30/20, with approved expenditure reports.

This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

i. With sufficient reason the Subrecipient may apply for an extension of

the grant period for up to three months. The Subrecipent must submit

the request in writing. No extension is granted until approval is

received by DOJ in writing.

Page 5 of 6
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the VOCA Federal Grant Program Rule and Special Conditions
as Appendix .1 which is subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 6
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Special Provisions to the State of New Hampshire Grant Agreement

2017-VA-GX-0044

1. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements-The Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, as
adopted and supplemented by DOJ in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200
Uniform Requirements") apply to this FY 2017 award from OJP.

The Part 200 Uniform Requirements were first adopted by DOJ on December 26,
2014. If this FY 2017 award supplements funds previously awarded by OJP under
the same award number (e.g., funds awarded during or before December 2014), the
Part 200 Uniform Requirements apply with respect to all funds under that award
number i,

(regardless of the award date, and regardless of whether derived from the initial
award or a supplemental award) that are obligated on or affer the acceptance date of
this FY 2017 award.

For more information and resources on the Part 200 Uniform Requirements as they
relate to OJP awards and subawards ("subgrants"), see the OJP website
at https://oip.eov/funding/Part200UniformReQuirements.htm.

in the event that an award-related question arises from documents or other materials
prepared or distributed by OJP that may appear to conflict with, or differ in some
way from, the provisions of the Part 200 Uniform Requirements, the recipient is to
contact OJP promptly for clarification.

2. Compliance with DOJ Financial Guide
The recipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the
OJP website (currently, the "2015 DOJ Grants Financial Guide" available at
https://ojp.gov/rinancialguide/DOJ/index.htm), including any updated version that
may be posted during the period of performance.

3. Ail subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization
The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements for authorization of any subaward. This condition applies to
agreements that — for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements — OJP
considers a "subaward" (and therefore does not consider a procurement
"contract").
The details of the requirement for authorization of any subaward are posted on the
OJP web site at

https://oJp.gov/funding/Explore/SubawardAuthorization.htm (Award condition: All
subawards ("subgrants") must have specific federal authorization), and are
incorporated by reference here.

id-Subrecipient Initals
Date



4. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $150,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $150,000). This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements ~ OJP
considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award
condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $150,000)), and are incorporated by
reference here.

5. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The
recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to
prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of
recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this
condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any subrecipient. The details of the
recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons
are posted on the OJP web site at http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-
Trafficking.htm (Award condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and
subrecipients related to trafficking in persons (including reporting requirements and
OJP authority to terminate award)), and are incorporated by reference here.

6. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events.
The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies,
and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting
requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses
related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.
Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to
this award appears in the DOJ Grants Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of
"Post-award Requirements" in the "2015 DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

7. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award
the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the
manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation
or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act
of 2010, and other appl icable laws.

2  ̂ JSubrecipient Initals
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8. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the subgrantee at any tier -- develops or

delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles
for Grantees and Subgrantees, available
at httD://oiD.gov/funding/oiptrainingguidingDrinciDles.htm.

9. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient (subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically including any applicable
requirements in subpart E of 29 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment

opportunity program.

10. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all
applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on
the basis of sex in certain "education programs."

11. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination -
28 C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all

applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, specifically including any applicable

requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective

program beneficiaries. Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ regulation, was amended

effective May 4, 2016.

Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of

discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious

belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out

rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and subrecipient ("subgrantee")

organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules

and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based or

religious organizations.

The text of the regulation, now entitled "Partnerships with Faith-Based and Other

Neighborhood Organizations," is available via the Electronic Code of Federal

Regulations (currently accessible at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-
bin/ECFR?page=browse), by browsing to Title 28-Judicial Administration, Chapter

1, Part 38, under e-CFR "current" data.

12. Restrictions on "lobbying"

In general, as a matter of federal law, federal funds awarded by OJP may not be used
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by the subrecipient at any tier, either directly or indirectly, to support or oppose the
enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any
level of government. See 18 U.S.C. 1913. (There may be exceptions if an applicable
federal statute specifically authorizes certain activities that otherwise would be barred
by law.)

Another federal law generally prohibits funds awarded by OJP from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipient at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to
influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or
employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of federal grant or cooperative
agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan with respect to actions such as
renewing, extending, or modifying any such award. See 31 U.S.C. 1352. Certain
exceptions to this law, including exception that applies to Indian Tribes and tribal
Organizations.

Should any questions arise to whether a particular use of funds by a recipient (or
subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the recipient is
to contact OJP for guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written
approval of OJP.

The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid
or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in
connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of
any Federal grant or cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal
appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall
complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in
accordance with its instructions.

13. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds
(FY 2017) The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on
the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated
Appropriations Act, 2017, are set out at:

httD://oiD.gov/funding/ExDlore/FY 17AppropriationsRestrictions.htm and are
incorporated by reference here.

Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient
(or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the recipient is to contact their grant manager for guidance, and may not
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proceed without the express prior written approval of the grant manager and OJP.

14. Reporting potential fraud, waste and abuse and similar misconduct.
The recipient, and any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier, must promptly refer
to the DOJ Office of the Inspector General (010) any credible evidence that a (
principal, employee, agent, subrecipient, contractor, subcontractor, or other person
has, in connection with funds under this award- (1) submitted a claim that violates
the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving or relating to funds under this
award should be reported to the OIG by- (1) mail directed to: Office of the Inspector
General, U.S. Department of Justice, Investigations Division, 950 Pennsylvania
Avenue, N.W. Room 4706, Washington, DC 20530; (2) e-mail to:
oig.hotline@usdoj.gov; and/or (3) the DOJ OIG hotline: (contact information in
English and Spanish) at (800) 869-4499 (phone) or (202) 616-9881
(fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website

at https://www.usdoi.gov/oig.

15. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related
matters.

no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor
to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise
restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not
intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene
requirements applicable to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified
information), Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or
any other form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure
of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the recipient—
i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict
(or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from .
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been
requiring its employees or contractors to execute agreements or
statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to
prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as
described above, it will immediately stop any further obligations
of award funds, will provide prompt written notification to the
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federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to
do so by that agency.

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both-

i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity
that the recipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward
("subgrant"), procurement contract, or subcontract under
a procurement contract) either requires or has required
internal confidentiality agreements or statements from
employees or contractors that currently prohibit or
otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an
adequate factual basis, to support this representation; and

c. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under this award
is or has been requiring its employees or contractors to execute
agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described
above, it will immediately stop any further obligations of award funds
to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to the
federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit
resumption of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so
by that agency.

16. Compliance with 41 U.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to
employees)
The subrecipient at any tier must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the
employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal
grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant,
a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule,
or regulation related to a federal grant.

/

The subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the
predominant native language of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies
under41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to
this award, the recipient is to contact the DOJ awarding agency (OJP or OVW, as
appropriate) for guidance.

17. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

6
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Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving," 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October I, 2009), DOJ encourages
recipients and subrecipients ("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning
employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during the course of
performing work funded by this award, and to establish workplace safety policies
and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease crashes caused by
distracted drivers.

18. The subrecipient authorizes Office for Victims of Crime (OVC) and/or the Office of
the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO), and its representatives, access to and the right to
examine all records, books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant. The
State will further ensure that all VOCA subgrantees will authorize representatives of
OVC and OCFO access to and the right to examine all records, books, paper or
documents related to the VOCA grant.

19. VOCA Requirements
The recipient assures that the State and its subrecipients will comply with the
conditions of the Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) of 1984, sections 1404(a)(2), and
1404(b)(1) and (2), 42 U.S.C. 10603(a)(2) and (b)(1) and (2) (and the applicable
program guidelines and regulations), as required. Specifically, the State certifies that
funds under this award will:

a) be awarded only to eligible victim assistance organizations, 42 U.S.C.
10603(a)(2);

b) not be used to supplant State and local public funds that would otherwise be
available for crime victim assistance, 42 U.S.C. 10603(a)(2); and

c) be allocated in accordance with program guidelines or regulations implementing
42 U.S.C. 10603(a)(2)(A) and 42 U.S.C. 10603(a)(2)(B) to, at a minimum, assist
victims in the following categories: sexual assault, child abuse, domestic
violence, and underserved victims of violent crimes as identified by the State.

20. Demographic Data
The recipient assures that its subrecipients will collect and maintain information on
race, sex, national origin, age, and disability of victims receiving assistance, where
such information is voluntarily furnished by the victim.

21. The recipient understands that all OJP awards are subject to the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA, 42 U.S.C. section 4321 et seq.) and other related
Federal laws (including the National Historic Preservation Act), if applicable. The
recipient agrees to assist OJP in carrying out its responsibilities under NEPA and
related laws, if the recipient plans to use VOCA funds (directly or through subaward
or contract) to undertake any activity that triggers these requirements, such as
renovation or construction. (See 28 C.F.R. Part 61, App. D.) The recipient also
agrees to comply with all Federal, State, and local environmental laws and
regulations applicable to the development and implementation of the activities to be
funded under this award.
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22. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee Is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

23. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant funds
or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by

(2017-VA-GX-0044) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice
Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.

Department of Justice."

24. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on

or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly
managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

25. The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim
services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice.

26. The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims in aoplving for Victims Compensation benefits.
Such assistance includes: identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
eligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain
the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so.

27. The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, capita! expenses, compensation for victims of
crime and fundraising.

28. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
program income waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice, if permission to

generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding
scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

29. Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage

of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title to any

equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the New Hampshire
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Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the

VOCA program purposes for which it was acquired.

30. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be

an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any

associated management letters to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants

Management Unit.

31. Sub-Recipients of federal funding from the NH Department of Justice are required to

comply with all federal regulations that relate to non-discrimination. These requirements

are specified in United States Code of Federal Regulation Title 28, sections 35, 38, 42 and

54. Individuals who believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH

Department of Justice or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH

Department of Justice based on their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability,

age, sexual orientation or gender identity should print and complete a Discrimination

Complaint Form found at httDs://www.doi.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm.

32. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements

available online (either on the subgrantee's website, or the NH Department of Justice's, or

another publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status

are considered in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the

extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as

several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial statements.

33. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by

submitting a statement to NH Department of Justice: 1) affirmatively asserting that the

recipient is a non-profit organization and 2) indicating that the subgrantee has on file and

available upon audit one of the following:

•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State of NH stating that the subgrantee is a non-profit

organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its

non- profit status

Subgrantees that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should

also have a statement by the parent organization that the subgrantee is a local non-profit

affiliate.

34. Certification Regarding EEOP Required:
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR
42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil Rights,
Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC 20531. Failure
to submit an approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program Guidelines and
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Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until such time as the
Subrecipient is in compliance. Additional information on EEOP requirements may be found
here: httD://oip.sov/aboul/ocr/faq eeop.htm

The form and instructions can be found at: httD://oiD.gov/about/ocr/Ddfs/cert.Ddf

I have read and understand all 34 special provisions contained in this document:

Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Signature Date

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, 117 N. State Street, Concord, NH 03301

Name and Address of Agency
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Non-supplanting Certification

Supplanting defined

Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If
there is a potential presence of supplanting, the applicant or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction in non-Federal resources occurred for reasons
other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certification may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part 11,
Chapter 3). httD://www.oiD.usdoi.gov/financialguide/part2/part2chaD3.htm.

Supplanting and iob retention

A grantee may use federal funds to retain jobs that, without the use of the federal money, would
be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain jobs, it must be able to
substantiate that, without the funds, the jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be, but is not
limited to, one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a county or
municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced when
making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the terminated
positions and that the termination is because of lack of the availability of State or local funds.

The New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Applicant) certifies that any funds awarded

through grant number 2017-VA-GX-0044 shajj used to supplement existing funds

for program activities and will not replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been

appropriated for the purposes and goals of the grant.

The New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Applicant) understands that supplanting

violations may result in a range of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future

funds under this program, suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies

provided under this grant, and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Title: Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director

Signature:_ Date:



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they
are required to attest. Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in
the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of Justice
("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

1 . LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Applicant certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Applicant, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Applicant's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Applicant shall complete and submit Standard Form
- LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOJ awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Applicant shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Applicant certifies,
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with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a), that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theff, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application. Where the Applicant or any of its principals was
convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal violation
under any Federal law, the Applicant also must disclose such felony criminal conviction in
writing to the Department (for OJP Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov;
for OVW Applicants, to OVW at OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS
at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov), unless such disclosure has already been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Applicant is a corporation, it certifies either that (I) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies
have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or (2) the corporation has
provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to the Department (for OJP
Applicants, to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Applicants, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Applicants, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it shall
attach an explanation to this application.
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4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650;
A. The Applicant certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to, provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street, NE, Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OV W award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs,
AI I N: Control Desk, 810 7th Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531.
Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under .
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:



(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director
Name and Tjtle of Head of Agency

)at?Signature Datt

New Hampshire Legal Assistance. 117 N. State Street. Concord, NH 03301

Name and Address of Agency



EEOP Reporting

1, Sarah Mattson Dustin [responsible official], certify that

New Hampshire Legal Assistance [recipient] has completed the EEO reporting tool certification

form at: https://oiD.gov/about/ocr/faq eeop.htm on 11/18/2018 [Date]

And that Sarah Mattson Dustin [responsible official] has completed the EEOP
training at https://oiD.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on: 11/18/2018 [date}

1 further certify that: New Hampshire Legal Assistance [recipient]
will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the
delivery of services.

Signature: Date:
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL

ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 20, 1971. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63969

Certificate Number: 0004488025

%
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



(?• Dano. B)shejii,

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

, do hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of New Hampshire Leoal Assistance .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
/

the Agency duly held on ii/i4/2nia :
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Fyftrutive Director
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

day of April. 2019.the

4.

(Date Contract Signed)

Sarah Mattsnn DuRtin is the duly elected Fyar.iitlvft Dirprtnr

(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of |V\errimflC.k

tract Signato

r^tlre^fthe icer)(Sic ted

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this | 0 day of I . 20_|_3_.

G. Dana
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

(NOTARY SEAL)
■  ) ,

BREMOA L GRANT Notoiy PuMc
Commission Expires: teta of New Hampahtre

My Coinmlnlon Explm January 13.2021

L.
(Notary Publ^ustid^ of the Peace)



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Board of Directors

ANNUAL BOARD RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING FUNDING APPLICATIONS

November 14, 2018

Be it resolved that the Executive Director of New Hampshire Legal Assistance

(NHLA) and/or her designee is authorized to seek and apply for funds from:

Endowment for Health,

Local Community Development Offices,

New Hampshire Bar Foundation (lOLTA and other),

New Hampshire Charitable Foundation and affiliated foundations and funds.

New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority,

New Hampshire Department of Justice,

New Hampshire Legislature (for renewal and possible expansion of NHLA's state appropriation).

Administration on Aging,

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development,

U. S. Department of Justice,

United Ways,

and is further authorized to apply for other public and private grants, contracts, and

awards, and donations, for civil legal services to the poor, to be used for general revenues

and for special projects, and is further authorized to execute such documents as

necessary to accept such funds in the name of New Hampshire Legal Assistance.

This resolution shall remain in effect through December 31, 2019.

Adopted by the Board of Directors

November 14, 2018
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DWYYYY)

3/19/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FlAl/Cross Insurance

1100 Clm Street

Manchester NB 03101

Cara Scala

(603)669-3219 ^ ,«a,.4a-4»i

aI^fss- cscala6crossagency.com
INSURERfS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A Hanover Ins Co. 22292

INSURED

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

INC.

117 N. STATE STREET

CONCORD NH 03301

INSURER B Citizens Ins Co of America 31534

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 18/19 Ma»t«r REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPe OF INSURANCE iTOilivWI POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE nri OCCUR

GENT. AGGREGATE UMITAPPUES PER;

LOCPOUCY'□sis □
OTHER:

OHV9596253

POUCY EFF
tMM/DO/YYYYl

7/1/2016

POUCY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYl

7/1/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
OAMACETOREWTED
PREMISES lEa ocajfreoce)

MED EXP (Any 006 peftoo)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PROOUCTS ■ COMP/OP AGG

1,000,000

300,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABILmr COMBINEO SINGLE UMIT
(Ea aeddanti 1,000,000

ANY AUTO
ALL OVWED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per peraon)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OUWED
AUTOS

OKV9S962S3 7/1/2010 7/1/2019 BODILY INJURY (Per aeddeni)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer ecddenO

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2,000,000

AGGREGATE 2,000,000

RETENTION % OBV9S962S3 7/1/2018 7/1/2019

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yea, deaolbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beloiv

E
3A SteCe: KB

All effieera Included

KBV9S96241

V PER OTH-^ STATUTE ER
E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000

7/2/2018 7/2/2019 E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000.000

E,L DISEASE • POUCY UMIT 1.000.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCATXINSI VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Addldenal Renurtca Schedule, may be attached H uiora apace to required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Heu&pshire Department of Justice
33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Cara Scala/CS3 '

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Deparljwcnl of tho Treasuo"
IiilernnI Revenue Sen'ice

P.O. Box 2508

Cincinnati OH ^5201

In reply refer to: 0248^59779
June 11, 2008 LTR 4168C EO
02-0300897 000000 00 000

00026861

BODC: TE

017451

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
117 N STATE ST

CONCORD NH 03301-4407170

Employer Identification Number: 02-0300897
Person to Contact: MS. LEWIS

Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear TAXPAYER:

This is in response to your request of June 02, 2008, regarding your
tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that a determination letter was Issued in
SEPTEMBER 1971, that recognized you as exempt from Federal income tax,
and discloses that you are currently exempt under section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records also indicate you are not a private foundation within the
meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described in
section 5Q9(a)(2).

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or
for your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code.

If you have any questions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely yours.

Hichele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations Z
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ivachon Clukay
& Company PC

CCRT I r iUD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chcsiniii Sircci • Mhnchcsicr, New llntnpshirc 03104
(603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vaclionclukay.coin

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, inc.

Report on the Fiiinncinl Stntcniciits

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hatnpshire Legal Assistance,
Inc., which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, .and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then, ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

s

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that arc free from material misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud or
error.

A uditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aucliling Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perfomi the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures, in the finaneial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterncnls, whether due to
fraud or error: In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc., as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedules of functional expenses and the combining statements of financial
position and activities are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Additionally, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
30, 2018, on our consideration of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 30, 2018



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2017 and 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

201

1,258,104

29,610

2,378

3,661,256

5,000

32,690
13,850

5,002,888

2016

1,428,475

50,494

2,283

4,153,203

56,851

25,429
13.850

5,730,585

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Contributions receivable

Land, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

255,958

255,958

5,000
248,643

253,643

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,258,846 5,984,228

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

47,357

151,064

29,610

11,000

239,031

68,478

132,540

50,494

11,000

262,512

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

18,000

18,000

257,031

30,000

30,000

292.512

NET ASSETS:

Unrestricted:

Board designated reserve

Undesignated
Temporarily restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

450,000

605,555
3,946,260

5,001.815

1,032,094
4,659.622

5,691.716

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $  5,258,846 $ 5,984,228

See notes to financial statements
3



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA S  281,458 $  249,083

Government grants and contracts 674,995 900.763

United Ways 70,308 96,823

Contributions - Foundations and Other 332,525 265,444

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 283,894 277,040

Case revenue 135,991 260,966'

Investment income 1,278 1,000

Net assets released from restrictions 2,124,482 1.506,116

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE 3,904,931 3.557,235

EXPENSES:

Program services:

Domestic violence project 577,525 168,677

Housing justice project 673,153 676,106

Senior law project 215,234 226,177

Youth law project 155,567 57,598

Other civil legal services 1,591,643 1,646,241

Total program services 3,213,122 2,774,799

Supporting services:

Fund raising 225,601 169,397

Management and general 442.747 601,905

Total supporting services 668,348 771,302

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,881,470 3,546,101

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 23,461 11,134

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA 201,042 177,917

Government grants and contracts 785,403 3,275.103

United Ways 54,750 30,633

Contributions - Foundations and Other 363,925 550,176

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services 6,000 14,637

Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions (2,124,482) (1,506,116)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS (713,362) 2,542,350

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (689,901) 2,553,484

NET ASSETS - January I 5.691,716 3,138,232

NET ASSETS - December 31 $  5,001,815 $  5,691,716

See notes to financial statements
4



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation
Unrealized losses in investments

Net effect of changes in:

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for others

Net cash used by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on note payable
Net cash used for financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - January 1

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - December 31

zm 2m

$, (689,901) $ 2,553,484

19,871

491,947

56,851

(7,261)
(21,121)

18,524
(20,884)

(151,974)

(27,186)

(95)
(27,281)

(12,000)

(12,000)

(191,255)

1,478,969

$  1,287,714

21,130

7

(2,584,207)

(37,114)

8,935

27,569

5,513

(58.712)
(63,395)

(35,206)

(35,206)

(12,000)

(12.000)

(110,601)

1,589,570

$  1,478,969

See notes to financial statements
5



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended December 3!, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is a non-profit organization incorporated in 1971, with the mission
to fulfil) America's promise of equal justice by providing civil legal services to New Hampshire's poor,
including education and empowerment, advice, representation, and advocacy for systemic change.

The accounting policies of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (the 'Entity'), conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as
indicated hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets,
based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The Entity has no permanently
restricted net assets.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in unrestricted net
assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor
restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending
on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2017 2016

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position -
Cash and equivalents 5 1,258,104 $ 1,428,475
Cash, resu^icted

$ 1,287.714 $ 1,478,969



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Investments

Investments, which consist of unit investment trusts, are stated at fair value at December 31, 2017 and
2016. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are reflected in the statements of activities.

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional pledges are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value of the
estimated fair value. Conditional pledges are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. Contributions receivable are collectible as
follows:

2017 Total 0-1 Years 1-5 Years
Contributions receivable 5— $ 14,449

2016 Total 0-1 Years 1-5 Years
Contributions receivable $ 56,851 $ 5,000

Land, Building and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased items and at acquisition value for donated items
and is summarized as follows:

2017 2016

Land $ 10,000 $ 10,000

Building 474,993 447,807
Equipment 224,209 224,209

709,202 682,016

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (453,244) (433,373)
$  255,958 $ 248,643

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated three to ten-year lives for
equipment, and seven to forty-year lives for the building and improvements. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments with a useful life in excess of two years are
capitalized. ^

Depreciation expense for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $19,871 and $21,130,
respectively.

Deposits Heldfor Others

Deposits held for others consist of funds that are held for the express purpose of third party individuals
and organizations and are therefore not available to support the Entity's own programs.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the Entity's policy to charge off
uncollectible receivables when management determines the receivable will not be collected. No
allowance has been recorded as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, because management of the Entity
believes that all outstanding receivables are fully collectible. •

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Functional Allocation ofExpenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying statements of activities. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations
calculated based on hours worked.

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the allocated costs of the Campaign for Legal Services (See Note 14
below). Disti'ibutions of campaign donations to the Entity's campaign partner agencies have been
included as fundraising expense because the Entity has an agreement to distribute these funds, which do
not represent typical, out-of-pocket operating expenses of the Entity. Distributions of campaign donations
for the year ended December 31,2017 and 2016 totaled $73,100 and $69,300, respectively.

Donated Services

The Entity receives donated services from a variety of part-time volunteers in the form of administrative
assistance, as well as paralegal and legal services. The estimated fair value of these donations is recorded
as revenue and expenses in the accompanying Statements of Activities. Donated services recognized as
revenue and expenses in the Statements of Activities for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016
was $101,691 and $102,459, respectively.

Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NOTE 2--1NVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need
to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

" Unit Investment Trusts: Valued at the quoted liquidation price for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets at fair value as
of December 31, 2017 and 2016:



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31. 2017
I

Unit Investment Trusts

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$  2,378 $

Total

2,378

Total assets at fair value $  - $ 2,378 $

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31. 2016

$ 2,378

Unit Investment Trusts

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$  2,283 $

Tctal

2,283

Total assets at fair value $  - $ 2,283 $ $ 2,283

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Entity's investments as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are stated at fair value. Shares of the separate
investment accounts are valued at liquidation prices, which represent the value per unit the Entity would
receive if the Entity redeemed or sold the units at year-end.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is recorded on the
accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date.

I

Investments consist of unit investment trusts which are carried at market value (adjusted annually).
Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statements of activities. Assets held in the
investment accounts were as follows at December 31,2017 and 2016:

Market Market

Value Value

2017 2016

Unit Investment Trusts 5_^2j37£

NOTE 3~GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2017 and
2016:

Slate of New Hampshire and Federal - Departments and Agencies
Local Govemmcnls

New Hampshire Bar Foundation • lOLTA
United Way (various branches)
Foundations and Other

2017 2016

$ 2,699,780 $ 3,453,279

54,417 49,446

, 241,250 213,500

37,334 38,716

628.475 398,262

$ 3,661,256 $ 4,153,203

NOTE 4--N0TE PAYABLE

Note payable at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of the following:

2017

Promissory note payable, maturing July 2020;
payable in monthly installments of $1,000 $ 29,000 $ 41,000

10



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

The Entity's note payable is a result of a legal settlement agreement reached In November 2012. The
terms of the agreement require the Entity to make monthly payments of $1,000, with no interest, through
July 2020. In addition, as part of the settlement agreement, the holder of the promissory note will make
annual payments of $5,000 over a six-year period commencing April 30, 2013, to the Campaign for Legal
Services.

Scheduled maturities of the note payable for the next three years are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31. AmPUnt

2018 $ 11,000

2019 12,000

2020 6,000

S  29,000

NOTE 5-LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has an available line of credit with its primary bank for up to $500,000. No amounts have been
drawn on the line of credit and there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31,2017 and 2016.

NOTE 6-VACATION LEAVE

Full-time employees earn annual vacation leave as they provide services. Pursuant to Entity policy, full-
time employees may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon
termination of employment be compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay. Employees may not
"cash out" their accumulated vacation leave at any time during their employment. Accumulated earned
vacation leave at December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $95,207 and $86,156, respectively, and has been
included as part of the 'Accrued expenses' liability in the Statements of Financial Position.

NOTE 7-FENSION PLAN

The Entity operates a 401(k)-retirement plan, and under the plan's "safe harbor" rules, the Entity
contributes 3% of all employees' salaries to the plan. Under the terms of the plan, the Entity has the
discretion to make a higher level of contribution to the plan but is not obligated. For the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Entity's discretionary contribution was 2% of all employees' salaries.
Contributions to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled $114,975 and $106,461,
respectively.

NOTE 8-TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets whose use has been limited by donors as to purpose and/or a future time
period consists of the following as of December 31,2017 and 2016:
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Civil legal services $  1,087,160 $  846,050
f

Fair Housing legal services 835,672 1,269,069

Domestic violence legal services 358,447 583,054

Elderly and Adult legal services 348,895 305,188

Violence against women legal services 45,000

Juveniles and Youth legal services 22,579 44,198

Human Services and Homeless legal services 28,334 24,844

Medical and Legal Collaboration 1,923 10,253

Enviornmenlal Justice Project 357,815 446,821

Victims of Crime legal services 807,206 1,066,210

Supervised Visitation legal services 47,229 49,298
1

Campaign for Legal Services 6.000 14.637
\

r

$ 3,946,260 $ 4,659,622 ' 1

NOTE 9-LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Entity leases its current Manchester, New Hampshire office building under an agreement that
commenced October 1, 2014 and ends September 30, 2019. The Entity leases its Concord, New
Hampshire office under an agreement that commenced November 19, 2014 and ends November 18, 2019.
The terms of all of the Entity's leases contain a provision that allow the Entity to terminate the lease prior
to the end of the lease term in the event of a funding reduction. Rental expense for leases was $173,253
and $ 167,650 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for operating leases:

Year Ended Annual Lease

2018 $  145,065

2019 122,272

$  267.337

NOTE ID-INCOME TAXES

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by tlie Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code.

The Entity has adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for
Income Taxes which requires the Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial repoiting purposes.
FASB ASC 740 prescribes rules regarding how the Entity should recognize, measure and disclose in its
financial statements, tax positions that were taken or will be taken on the Entity's tax returns that are
reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Differences between tax
positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial statements will generally result in
an increase in a liability for income tax payable or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or an increase in a
deferred tax liability. The Entity had no uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2017 and, accordingly

12



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial
statements.

NOTE U-CASE REVENUE

The Entity receives a regular stream of case revenue from fees in Social Security and SSI disability cases.
These fee awards must be approved by the Social Security Administration Administrative Law Judge.
From time to time the Entity also receives larger attorney fee awards in individual and class action cases.
These class action fee awards are episodic, and it is not possible to predict in advance their amounts or the
dates they will be received. (

NOTE 12-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 31% and 34%, respectively, of total
unrestricted support and revenue was derived from an appropriation from the State of New Hampshire.
The discontinuation or reduction of the State appropriation would likely result in a decrease in services
provided by the Entity, until alternative revenues could be obtained.

NOTE 13-SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at financial institutions with local branches located in New
Hampshire. The Entity's cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to a total of $250,000 for all cash checking and sweep accounts. The Entity has entered into
agreements with the financial institutions to move funds in excess of FDIC limits into insured cash sweep
accounts. Funds held in the insured cash sweep accounts are placed into FDIC insured deposit accounts
with other financial institutions throughout the United States. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016 the
Entity's bank deposits were fully insured.

NOTE I4-CAMPAIGN FOR LEGAL SERVICES

In June 2005, the Entity assumed administration of the Campaign for Legal Services (the Campaign) from
the New Hampshire Bar Foundation. The Campaign is a joint fundraising effort on behalf of the Entity
and the Legal Advice and Referral Center (LARC), a not-for-profit entity providing civii legal services to
low-income people in the State of New Hampshire. Revenue and expenses of these activities have been
reported as contributions received and made and as fund raising expenses in these financial statements.
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 the Campaign had total unrestricted revenue and
support of $298,536 and $290,827, respectively, and total expenses excluding distributions of $89,677
and $92,827, respectively.

Distributions to the Campaign partners during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 totaled
$208,859 and $198,000, respectively. Distributions were allocated and made as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: the Entity received $135,758 and $128,700, respectively, and LARC
received $73,101 and $69,300, respectively.
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NEW HAMl'SHinE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

NOTE IS-CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a nun^ber of Federal and State assisted grant programs and contracts. Such
programs may be subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
amounts, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by a grantor agency cannot be determined at this
time, although the Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 16-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 30, 2018 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

14



SCHEDULE I

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient Federal
State Agency/Grant Program/State Catalogue
Grant Number Number

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Community Development Block Grants/State's program and
Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228

Total

Federal , Passed Through

Expenditures ' to Subrecioients

$  1,080 $ '

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department

Fair Housing Initiatives Program
#FPEI61013-01-0!

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Pass Through Payments from the County of Strafford, New Hampshire
Justice Systems Response to Families

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department

Legal Assistance for Victims
#2016-WL-AX-0037

14.408

16.021

16.524

309.765

310,845

2.069

233.983 15,485

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Department of Justice
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention
#2016-WF-AX-0045

16.540

39,198

Crime Victim Assistance

#2015-VA-GX-0007

Violence Against Women Formula Grants
#2017W066

Total Department of Justice

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Bureau
of Elderly and Adult Services
Special Programs for the Aging - Title III, Part B - Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers
#0595484810107820000

Total Department of Health and Human Services

16.575

16.588

93.044

259,003

48,916

583,169

120,295

120,295

50,293

65,778

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
$  1,014,309 65,778

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
15



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

NOTE 1--BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of New Hampshire Legal Assistance. Inc. under programs of the federal government for
the year ended December 31, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulalions Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc, it is not intended to and does not present the net assets, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. s financial
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3~INDIRECT COST RATE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

/

NOTE 4-RELATlONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the Entity's financial statements
as program services and management and general expenses.
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IVACHON CLUKAY
& Company PC

CERT/r/CD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

608 Chcsiniii Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 0.3104
(603) 622-7070 • Pax; (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard's
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2017, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 30,2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perfomiing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Ine.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing oiir opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Ine.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, ine.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination, of deficiencies,'in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in, internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in .internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identily any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material, weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that,have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmenl Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 30,2018

Pd
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REPORT ON GOMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY tHE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

--s

To the Board of Directors

New Ha_mpshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described, in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each ofNew Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s majoi'federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2017. New Hampshire Legal Assisttmce, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, arid the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

A uditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of coriipliance requirertients
referred to above; We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and
the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct arid material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in.the circuriistances.

Wc bclicvC' tliat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Haitipshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, New.Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each m^jor federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire ^
March 30, 2018
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New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31,2017

Section I—Summary of Auditor's Results

V

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(cs) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodifted

_yes

_yes

yes

X no

X  none reported

X  no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in.accordance with
2CFR 200.516(a)?

_yes X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

_yes X  no

Identification of major programs:

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

16.524 Legal Assistance for Victims

16.575 Crime Victim Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B program: ^—750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X  no
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Section U-Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section III--FcdcraI Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Scbednles of FaactioiMl Expemcs

For ̂  Yen Ended December 31.2017 tnd 2016

Decembef 31.2017

Domestic Housing Other ManagesKM

—~ Violence Justice SenimLaw Youth Law Civil Legal and Combined

Prolea Proiea Project Proieet Services Total FundRaisma General Total Total

Salaries S  344.6S1 S  458,869 S  149,009 S  100,429 S  942,051 S  1,995,009 S  84.484 S  290.413 $  374.897 S  2369.906

PayroD taxes 24,478 33,858 10373 7,367 77.843 154,119 6.452 23,060 29,512 183,631

Employee benefits 48,281 70,408 22,092 15320 I7I369 327370 10,900 47,641 58341 385.811

Space and occupancy 26.603 35315 10,046 8311 106346 186.621 5.331 24.009 29340 215,961

Office supplies and csqMnses 4,760 8396 2,108 3,462 20,786 39,412 14,440 5,071 19311 58,923

Postage 1,062 1395 395 333 3,463 6,648 1,140 855 1.995 8,643

Equipment rental and rnaimenance 2,648 3,524 1,000 813 9314 17,199 491 2313 2.704 19303

CommufticaiioRS 4,482 5,819 1,647 1348 14,904 28300 806 3,628 4,434 32,634

Library 8,061 8,844 2,544 2,794 11,480 33,723 963 4338 5301 39.024

Trtinmgaad oeetiags 6,828 6,743 682 2,510 10,702 27,465 1.086 3333 4,619 32,084

Utsorance 2366 3320 924 738 1234! 19,589 559 2320 3,079 22.668

Dues and fees I3S6 3374 589 468 11,610 17,627 1.004 2368 3372 20,899

Liti^tioo exposes 18371 2,672 1,061 5372 5,619 33395 33395

Temporaries/contna services 11,753 15,744 5356 3,703 157,941 1K497 12.648 25.022 37.670 232.167

Sub-Grams 59,086 5,665 4,050 88 68,889
-

68,889

Travel 10324 6375 2.598 2,091 14.865 36.453 1,847 4.690 6,537 42390

Disaibutioos to canqniga partners 73.100 73,100 73,100

Other expenses 2385 2,432 560 420 4.138 9.935 9,859 1377 11,136 21,071

Depreciaoon

Total Punctiona] Expenses

17.171 17.171 491 2309 2.700 19.871

S  577,525 $  673,153 5  215,234 $  155 367 S  1,591,643 i 3313.122 S  225.601 $  442,747 S  668348 S  3.881,470

December31. 2016

Domestic Housing Odxr Management

Combined
Violence Justice SeniwLaw Youth Law Civil Legal and

Proieet Proieet Proieet Proiea Services Total Fund Raisina General Total Total

Salaries S  108,040 S  452,051 8  136,012 S  36,114 $  1.075.624 S  1,807,841 J  51,147 S  2883S7 $  339.404 S  2.147345

Payrofl taxes 836$ 34 382 10.405 2,763 86,169 142.184 4,061 22.889 26,950 169,134

Employee benefits 20333 82,169 25370 5,714 188,161 321,647 9,100 51386 603S6 382.033

Space and occttpancy 9.458 36,687 9.787 3,488 112,015- 171,435 6,653 26336 32.989 204,424

Office luppfiq and expenses 1.458 6371 2346 465 19,899 30,639 8.698 5.817 14315 45,154

401 1.888 467 173 4,705 7,634 342 1,179 1321 9,155

EqutpDMin roitaJ and maintenance 1,053 3377 1.034 389 10,464 16,517 641 2337 3,178 19,695

1392 5,709 1,493 551 16320 25365 996 3343 4339 30,604

Ubtaty 2,061 8,014 2,085 701 18333 31.094 1307 4,777 53J4 37,078

Traiinng and meetings 3,624 2346 19,415 141 4307 29,633 1,526 4,608 6,134 35,767

Insurance 895 3372 1337 342 11332 17378 698 2,762 3,460 21.438

Dues and £ses I3S6 3,006 1,002 229 7,767 13390 150 1,988 2,138 15,428

LitigatWB expgtses 2.440 12,580 4360 835 6.199 26314 26314

Temporaties/oomraa services 2362 9,671 2,635 1,176 35.100 51.144 6.707 170.740 177,447 228391

Sub-Grams 2,414 5,000 2333 4.547 14.194 2.099 2,099 16393

4,723 8,462 2,763 2,061 18,687 36.696 1394 5.618 6.912 43,608

Dijjribmions to campaign parmcrs 69300 69300 69300

Ocba esqienses 686 2,907 666 223 9397 13,779 6,877 3,054 9,931 23,710

Deprecia&on

Total Functiotal Expenses

17.115 17.115 4.015 4,015 21.130

S  168,677 S  676,106 $  226,177 S  57398 S  1.646341 $ 2.774,799 $  169397 S  601.905 s  771302 S  3346.101
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position
December 31,2017

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

New Hampshire 1 Campaign for
Leaal Assistance Leeal Services

1,140,027

29,610

2,378

3,661,256

77,842

32,690
13.850

4,957,653

118,077

5,000

Eliminations

(77,842)

123,077 (77,842)

Total

1,258,104

29,610

2,378

3,661,256

5,000

32,690

13,850

5,002,888

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Land, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

255,958

255,958

$  5,213,611 123,077

255.958

255,958

(77.842) S 5,258,846

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

8,122

151.064

29,610

11,000

199,796

$  117,077

17,077

(77,842)

(77,842)

47,357

151,064

29,610

11,000

239,03:

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

18,000

18,000

217,796 117,077 (77.842)

18,000

18,000

257,031

NET ASSETS:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

1,055,555
3,940,260

4.995,815

6,000

6,000

1,055,555
3.946,260

5.001,815

TOTAL LIABILITIES "and NET ASSETS S 5.213,611 S 123,077 $ (77,842) $ 5,258,846
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2016

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS;

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

New Hampshire Campaign for
Legal Assistance Leeal Services

1,311,690

50,494

2.283

4,153,203

114,712

25,429

Eliminations

116,785

56,851 $ (114,712)

Total

1,428,475

50,494

2,283

4,153,203

56,85!

25,429

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,671.661 173.636 (114,712) 5,730,585

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Contributions receivable

Land, building and equipment (net)
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

248,643

5,000 5.000

248,643

248,643 5,000 . 253,643

TOTAL ASSETS $  5,920,304 $ 178,636 $  (114,712) $ 5,984,228

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES;

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others
Current portion of note payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Note payable, less current portion -
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS

19,191

132,540

'50,494

$  163,999 $ (114,712) $ 68,478

132,540

50,494

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $

213,225 163,999 (114,712) 262,512

30.000 30,000

30.000 - ' 30.000

243,225 163,999 (114,712) 292,512

1.032,094

4.644.985 14,637

1,032,094

4,659,622

5.677,079 14,637 - 5,691,716

$  5,920,304 $ 178,63'6 $  (114,712) $ 5,984,228"

25



NEW HAMPSHtRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 20 i 7

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundaiion - lOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other

Contributions«Campaign for Legal Services
Case revenue

Investment income

Net assets released from restrictions

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES;

Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Senior law project

Youth law project
Other civil legal services

Total program services

Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general

Total supporting services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSET

New Hampshire Bar Foundation • lOLTA
Government grants and contracts

United Ways

Contributions • Foundations and Other

Contributions • Campaign for Legal Services
Temporarily rcsu-icted net assets released from restrictions

DECREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS-January I

NET ASSETS - December 31

New Hampshire
Leeal Assistance

Campaign for
Leeal Services Eliminations Total

$  281,458

674,995

70,308

332,525

135,758

135,991
1,273

2.109,845

$  283,894

5

14,637

$  (135,758)

$  281,458

674.995

70,308

332,525

283,894

135,991

1,278

2,124,482

3,742,153 298,536 (135,758) 3,904,931

577,525

673,153

215,234

155,567

1,591,643

577,525

673,153

215.234

155,567
1,591,643

3,213,122 - - 3,213,122

62,823
442,747

298,536 (135,758) 225,601

442,747

505,570

3,718,692

298,536

298,536

(135,758)

(135,758)

668,348

3,881,470

23,461 . 23,461

201,042

785.403

54,750 '

363,925

(2,109.845)

6,000 '
(14,637)

201,042

785,403

54,750

363,925

6,000
(2,124.482)

(704.725) (8,637) (713,362)

(681,264) (8.637) (689,901)

5.677,079 14,637 . 5,691,716

$  4,995,815 $  6,000 $ $  5,001,815
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NKW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE;

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions • Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Case revenue

Investment income

Net assets released from restrictions

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED SUPPORT AND REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housingjustice project
Senior law project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services

Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general

Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSET
New Hampshire Bar Foundation • lOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways

Contributions - Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions

INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED
NET ASSETS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January 1

NET ASSETS - December 31

New Hampshire Campaign for

Leaal Assistance I.esal Services Eliminations Tptfil

$  249,083 $  249,083

900,763 900,763

96,823 96,823

263,444 265,444

128.700 $  277,040 S  (128.700) 277,040

260,966 260,966

990 10 1,000

1.492.339 13,777 1,506,116

3,395,108 290,827 (128,700) 3.557.235

168,677 168,677

676,106 676,106

226,177 226.177

57,598 57,598

1,646,241 1,646.241

2,774,799 . - 2,774,799

7,270 290,827 (128,700) 169,397

601,905 601,905

609,175 290,827 (128,700)- 77i,302

3.383.974 290,827 (128,700) 3,546,101

11,134 . . 11,134

177,917 177,917

3,275,103 3.275,103

30,633 30,633

550,176 550,176

14.637 14,637

(1,492,339) (13,777) (1,506,116)

2.541,490 860 2,542,350

2,552.624 860 -
2,553,484

3.124,455 13.777 . 3,138,232

$  5.677,079 $  14,637 $ S' 5.691,716
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE Board of Directors 2019
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE

2020 VOCA Award

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Annual Salary (2019) % Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Kay Drought Project Attorney $105,428 3% $3,292.60

Erin Jasina Project Director $62,576 17% $10,943.97

Mary Krueger Project Attorney $84,212 9% $7,890.02

Jlliian Riehl Project Attorney $66,997 100% $57,958.46

Chris Schott Project Attorney $57,691 100% $58,557.38

Cheryl Steinberg Project Attorney $105,428 6% $6,585.20

Michelle Wangerin Project Attorney $84,212 4% $3,131.81

a



KAY ELIZABETH DROUGHT

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801

Education

BOALT HALL SCHOOL OF LAW, UMVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, Berkeley,
California

Juris Doctor, May 1985

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, Berkeley, California
Master of Arts, City and Regional Planning, May 1985

WILLIAMS COLLEGE, Williamstown, Massachusetts
Bachelor of Arts, cum laude. Political Economy, May 1981

Legal Employment

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, Portsmouth, New Hampshire
Litigation Director, 2004 to present
Branch Law Office Managing Attorney, 1997 to present
•  Supervise and co-counsel significant litigation
•  Lead counsel. 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 lawsuit to enforce children's rights to dental

care under federal Medicaid law. Hawkins v. Commissioner, 99-CV-143 (D.N.H.)
•  Lead counsel, Right-to-Know case involving Medicaid records,

Hawkins v. Department ofHealth and Human Services, 147 N.H. 376 (2001)
•  Co-counsel, successful challenge to State's inclusion of children's SSI as TANF

assistance group income, Hendrick v. Department of Health and Human Services,
New Hampshhe Supreme Court August 2016.

• Conduct community outi*each on Medicaid dental issues
•  Organize and lead case acceptance meetings and case review discussions
• Represent individual clients in unemployment, eviction defense, and public benefits

cases

TEXAS RURAL LEGAL AID, FARM WORKER DIVISION, Plainviewyand
Hereford, Texas
Regional Counsel, 1993 to 1997 ^
Branch Manager, 1988 to 1992
Staff Attorney, 1987 to 1997

•  Litigated employment, civil rights, housing, environmental, education, and consumer
cases, primarily in federal couils

•  Lead counsel in numerous class action and mass plaintiff cases, including:
Murillo Texas A & M University System et at, 921 F. Supp. 443 (S.D. Tex.
1996) and Salinas v. Rodriguez, Goodpasture, et al, 963 F. 2d 791 (5th Cir.
1992), reh'gdeniedm F. 2d 187 (5th Cir. 1992)



• Organized press conferences and media coverage of significant cases
• Gave presentations on pretrial procedure and federal labor laws at niunerous seminar's

for new farm worker attorneys; prepared outlines, video demonstrations, and other
training materials •

MONTGOMERY & ANDREWS, P.A., Santa Fe, New Mexico
Associate Attorney, Commercial Department, 1985-1987
• Represented business clients in collection lawsuits; advised hospital, utility, and

financial institution clients on a variety of issues; represented individuals in real estate
purchases

• Gave presentations to lai'ge groups of hospital and public utility employees about
legal issues affecting their work

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, BEREKLEY, DEPARTMENT OF CITY AND
REGIONAL PLANNING, Berkeley, California
Teaching Assistant, graduate level Land Use Law course, 1985

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY, Oakland, California
Law Oerk, 1984 -1985

Volunteer Exnerience

NEW HAMPSHIRE SUPERIOR COURT RULE 170 MEDIATION PROGRAM
Volunteer Mediator, 2002 to 2010

ROCKINGHAM COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION
Member, Board of Directors, 1998 to 2000

STATE BAR OF TEXAS, DISTRICT T3A GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
Member, 1994 to 1997

STATE BAR OF NEW MEXICO, PRO BONO COMMITTEE
Member, 1986-1987



Erin P. Jasina
154 High Street, Portsmouth, NH 03 801

Phone: (603) 431 -7411, ext. 2509 • Email: ejasina@nhla.org

WORK EXPERIENCE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE (NHLA)
Domestic Violence Advocacy Project Director October 2017-present
•  Responsible for training, mentoring, and supervising project staff, including seven attorneys, one paralegal,

and one administrative manager

•  Prepare Federal and State grant progress reports on an annual, biannual, and quarterly basis
•  Serve as point person for media and general public inquiries related to domestic violence and family law

issues

•  Facilitate quarterly meetings of the Domestic Violence Advisory Council made up of project partners and
other key community stakeholders

Domestic Violence Advocacy Project Co-Director December 2014-C)ctobcr 2017

Paralegal Advocate, Domestic Violence Advocacy Project January 2008-prescnt
Assist attorneys in the representation of domestic violence victims/survivors in family law related matters,
including divorce, parental rights & responsibilities, child support, and termination of parental rights
Provide counsel & advice, under the supervision of project attorneys, to clients of the Strafford County
Family Justice Center

Coordinate with domestic violence crisis centers statewide to locate attorneys within NHLA to represent
clients at final domestic violence protective order hearings
Coordinate statewide DVAP referral process with crisis centers, NH Bar Association's Pro Bono Program,
and the Legal Advice & Referral Center

Assist attorneys with trial preparation by drafting court forms and pleadings, creating exhibit binders, and
preparing financial aifldavits

Participate in the discovery process by obtaining and analyzing lecords from bank institutions and police
departments, and drafting answers to interrogatories
Maintain client contact and provide support throughout case process, including attendance at court hearings
Train crisis center advocates on safe and effective parenting plans

Provide advocacy to clients seeking emergency assistance from town local welfare offices
Conduct legal research using Westlaw, the Internet, and public records

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE September 2013-pit5sent
Intern Coordinator

RHODE ISLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 2005-Dcccmber 2007
Paralegal, Elder Abuse Unit and White Collar Crime Unit, Criminal Division

Responsible for the preparation and filing of motions, including answering discovery requests
Acted as a contact for the public to report and ask questions regarding elder abuse
Maintained statistics for all pending and disposed cases handled by the Elder Abuse Unit
Participated In investi^tlons of elder abuse
Communicated with local and state law enforcement agencies throughout criminal proceedings
Prepared presentations and assisted in the training of law enforcement personnel and elder advocates



Erin P. Jasina
154 High Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801

Phone: (603) 431-7411, ext. 2509 • Email: ejasina@nhla.o:^

RHODE ISLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 2005
Paralegal, Insurance Advocacy Unit, Civil Division
•  Assisted with the preparation of insurance rate hearings, including tracking responses to all data requests,

maintaining attorneys' files, and overseeing the production of trial binders

•  Responsible for the preparation and filing of legal briefs
•  Compai"cd and reviewed proposed insurance laws and regulations

SKADDEN, ARPS, SLATE, MEAGHER & FLOM LLP, Boston, MA 2004-2005
Legal Hiring Assistant
•  Assisted in iKe hiring process of Summer Associates

•  Responsible for arranging interviews of all prospective attorneys
•  Represented firm at law school job fairs/receptions
•  Prepared materials used by attorneys at weekly Hiring Committee Meeting and participated in the meetings
•  Maintained fiim-wide database of all attorney applicants

•  Point of contact for attorneys regarding any HR related matters

DEBEVOISE & PLIMPTON LLP, Washington, DC 2003-2004
Legal Receptionist
•  Handled all incoming calls from clients, attorneys, and the general public
•  Assisted managing partner on special projects

•  Maintained and arranged office space for attorneys, clients, and staff
•  Organized office wide events, working with outside vendors and suppliers ;

EDUCATION

NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY, Boston, MA January-March 2005
Paralegal Professional Certificate Program

THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA, Washington, DC I999-2D03
B.A. Media Studies

•  Overall O.P.A. - 3.76/4.0; Magna Cum Laudc

•  Phi Eta Sigma (Fall 2000-Spring 2003)

•  Highest Honor in Senior Comprehensive Exam

COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL TRAINING
•  Member of the New Hampshire Family Mediator Certification Board since July 2015
•  Served as Chair and NHLA's rcpi-escntative to the StrafFord County Family Justice Center Advisory

Council

•  Attended the National Family Justice Center Alliance Conference (2011,2012,2014,2016)
•  Attend annual NH Statewide Conferences on Domestic and Sexual Violence and Stalking

•  April of 2007- Attended the Courtroom Technology course given by the National Disti'ict Attorneys
Association at the National Advocacy Center in Columbia, SC. This four day course focused on using
PowerPoint as a tool for case analysis and courtroom presentations.

COMPUTER SKILLS
•  Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, WesUaw, Lexis, FLAPS, and Wcb-based research



Mary KruegerJEsq. * ringfield, VT 05156 •

Education

University of New Hampshire School of Law Keene State College

Concord, NH Keene, NH

J.D., 2006 B.A. Psychology, 1994
GPA 3.76, top 10% GPA 4.0

Robert M. Vilcs fellow, full scholarship Honors, siunma cum laude

Licensed Vermont and New Hampshire Attorney
Member, Vermont Bar Association, New Hampshire Bar Association.

Work Experience

2019-present

2017-2019

2014-2017

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Staff Attorney

Advocate for low-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence and human trafficking in family law and related civil legal
matters Including public housing, homelcssness, town welfare, food
stamps, unemployment, consumer law, TANF and other public benefits.

Vermont Pacldnghouse LLC, North Springfield, VT
General Counsel

Work with General Manager on various business and legal issues. Ensure
regulatory compliance in areas of Federal and State law; manage
workers' compensation claims and safety; conduct legal research;
participate in staff engagement activities; perform human resources
tasks; oversee company communications; strategic planning.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, statewide, based in Claremont, NH
Deputy Director

Work with Executive Director as part of the Senior Management team to
manage statewide civil legal services law firm mission and vision;
manage NHLA programs, priorities, and staff to achieve organization
goals; oversee legal work, litigation, policy advocacy, staff development
and training, standards of practice and case management system; oversee
hiring process; oversight of personnel matters; oversee IT and
operations; input and decision-making responsibility on budget,
insurance, audits, retirement planning, purchasing and other fiscal
matters; oversee and update NHLA Policies and Procedures Manual;
oversee leases, vendor contracts, office maintenance needs; oversee staff
time and work duties; oversee client intake, client grievance procedures,
conflicts, income eligibility waivers; maintain relationships with partner
agencies; oversee internal and external communications via press and
social media; manage individual case load.



Mary Krueger Springfield, VT 05156 •

2006-2014

2001-2003

1995-2001

Es

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Project Director, Domestic Violence Advocacy Project (DVAP); Staff
Attorney

Advocate for low-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence in family law and related civil legal matters; oversee and
coordinate DVAP activitiw including project attorney and paralegal
work; serve as the liaison to project partners and community groups such
as the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
New Hampshire's Bar Association Pro Bono Program, domestic violence
crisis centers and shelters, New Hampshire's Legal Advice and Referral
Center, and New Hampshire Catholic Charities; i^esponsible for drafting
federal and state grant applications and biennial grant reports; serve as
faculty on biennial statewide domestic violence trainings for pro bono
lawyers and crisis center advocates; serve on the New Hampshire
Governor's Commission on Domestic and Sexual Violence and Human
Trafficking Commission; Advocate for clients on various legal issues
including public housing, homelessness, town welfare, food stamps,
unemployment, bankruptcy, TANF and domestic violence.

New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord, NH
Executive Producer, "The Exchange," statewide daily public affairs
program.

Managed program, host, staff, schedule and overall vision; researched,
selected and assigned program topics; pre-interviewed and booked
program guests; wrote and edited copy; produced and edited recorded
elements; produced election coverage and other special projects.

New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord, NH

Producer, "The Exchange," statewide daily public affairs program
Assistant Producer, 'The Exchange," statewide daily public affairs
program.

Assistant Producer, "Perspectives," daily half hour interview program.
"Voter's Voice" Election project coordinator, 1996 Presidential Priinaiy.

Volunteer Activities

2016-preseD(

2016-present

2012-2017

Springfield Elementaiy Schools Parent Teacher Association,
Springfield, VT
President; lead PTA in various efforts to improve Springfield schools;
engage parents and teachers in building strong educational systems and
experiences.

Girl Scout Leader: Troop #51293, Springfield, VT
Lead girls in learning, leadership, life, outdoor and business skills.

American Civil Liberties Union New Hampshire, Concord, NH
Board of Dii*ectors, Vice Chair



Mary Krueger, Esq.

2007-2016

2007-2017

Springfield, VT 05156 •

Executive committee, finance and economic justice committees and
other board duties.

Turning Points Network, Crisis Center, Claremont, NH
Board of Directors, Past Treasurer, Past President
Support agency's current and future goals; fundraising, event planning;
participate in strategic planning; oversee agency budget in collaboration
with executive committee and Dii"ector.

Access to Justice Commission, Concord, NH
Member, appointed by New Hampshire Supreme Court.



Christopher Schott
Jaahua, NH 03060 - CSchott@nhla.org

Education
University of New Hampshire School of Law, Concord, NH Graduated May 2018
Juris Doctor Candidate
GPA 3.21, Recipient of Presidential Scholarship and New Hampshire Grant

Advanced Criminal Practice Clinic -Aug. 2017 - Dec 2017
Student Attorney

•  Served indigent clients in New Hampshire and federal criminal proceedings.
•  Researched New Hampshire and federal criminal law and filed written motions on behalf of client's

defense.

Criminal Practice Clinic 2017- May 2017
Student Attorney

•  Represented indigent clients in misdemeanor and felony criminal cases in New Hampshire state court.
• Appeared in court to conduct cross examinations and assist supervising attorney.

Gettysburg CoUege, Gettysburg, PA Graduated May 2015
Bachelor of Arts in PoUricfli Science, Environmental Studies Minor
GPA 3.49, Dean's list Recipient, Member of Pi Sigma Alpha Political Science Honor Society

Employment

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Portsmouth, NH
Staff Attorney May 2018 - Present
•  Represent victims of domestic violence in protective order, divorce, and patenting cases.
• Advise victims of domestic violence regarding variety of legal issues they face as the result of abuse.
•  Track New Hampshire bills and observe legislative hearings related to issues of domestic violence and family law.

New Hampshire Department ofJustice ~ Environmental Protection Bureau Concord, NH
Legal Intern - Residency ' . Jan. 2018 - May 2018
• Aided supervising attorney in conducting a criminal investigation.
• Drafted complaints to enforce New Hampshire environmental r^ulations.
•  Researched and advised on questions of criminal, property, and consumer protection law.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Portsmouth, NH
Legallntem . . May 2017 - Aug. 2017
•  Aided in the representation of client's domestic violence, landlord-tenant, and housing discrimination cases.
•  Researched and advised on questions of healthcare, welfare, and education law.
•  Conducted direct and cross examinations in domestic violence cases before New Hampshire state courts.

New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services Concord, NH
Legallntem May 2016-Aug. 2016
•  Drafted documents to enforce state regulations of public bathing facilities.
•  Conducted research and advised on legal questions for members of the department.
•  Participated in on-site regulatory inspections of public bathing facilities.

Adams County Public Defender's Office _
Legal Intern
•  Performed research on Pennsylvania and federal law to form arguments for court cases.
•  Observed first hand plea bargaining, revocation hearings and crimmal trials.

Competencies
WestLaw Next, Lexis Advance, Bloomberg Law, Geographic Information Systems, STATA



JlLLlAN C. REIHL

I  Inn II I I I I l ll l ll l lll JReihl@nhla.org

Legal Experience;

Staff Attorney, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Manchester, NH January 2017 - present
• Represent income qualified victims and survivors of intimate partner violence, sexual assault, and

strong during protection order proceedings
■ Provide holistic legal representation to victims and survivors of intimate parter violence during family
law proceedings, including both divorce and parenting cases

• Assist immigrant victims of domestic violence and sexual assault with seeking legal status, Lawful
Permanent Resident status, and U.S. citizenship

• Work to build community partnerships with local service providers, law enforcement agencies, courts,
and culturally specific community groups

■ Represent and advise clients about other civil legal issues, including benefits and landlord tenant law,
in an effort to provide holistic legal services.

Associate Attorney, Drew Law Office, PLLC, Manchester, NH Octo^r 2012 - Januai'y 2017
• Independently manage and conduct all aspects of client intake and representation
• Develop standardized procedures, questionnaires, and form letters to improve case efficiency and

minimize staff errors or omissions
• Maximize profitability by utilizing free or low cost research tools such as Casem^er and Fastcase
■ Conduct legal research and analysis and draft memoranda, briefs, and opinion letters
■ Consult with outside counsel to provide comprehensive legal advice and on interdisciplinary issues
• Collaborate with social service providers and probono attorneys to secure ancillary services
■ Empower clients to make meaningful contributions to their representation through education
■ Expanded the areas of expertise within our practice to include the preparation of U-visa applications

Research Assistant, Prq/asi'or C. Symeoriides, Salem, OR August 2011 - May 2012
Research Assistant, Prq/esjor fK7rrcw 5in/br£/, Salem, OR July2011 -May 2012

• Edited chapters of a textbook to be published on Private International Law (Professor Symeomdes)
• Performed research and compiled a bibliography to support the writing of a textbook, law review

articles, and a successful Fulbright application {Trofessor Binford)

Law Clerk, ICE - Office ofthe Chief Counsel. Portland, OR June 2011 - August 2011
■ Prepared legal filings for submission to the Immigration Court and the Board of Immigration Appeals
■ Assisted staff attorneys by investigating legal issues and draftmg memoranda

Legal Intern, Willamette International Human Rights Clinic, Salem, OR August 2010 - May 2011
■ Asylum Work: Represented clients in affirmative and defensive asylum proceedings
• Non-profit Legal Assistance: Advised a non-profit organization about legal strategies for the

ratification of a treaty and sustainable business practices

Additional Professional Experience:
Assistant Director/Internship Coordinator, Colby Co/Zege, Waterville, ME May 2008 - July 2009

■ Developed and presented workshops on professional skills and networking
■ Motivated students by creating a plan of action during individual counseling
• Coordinated the College's internship programs
• Edited and drafted informational student resources
• Collaborated with Alumni Relations, Admissions, and other departments to develop and implement

strategies for expanding student opportunities

Fducation*

Willamette University College of Law, Salem, OR - GPA: 3.41 (18/121) J.D., cum laude. May 2012
Thomas College, Waterville, ME - GPA: 3.96 • '
William Smith College, Geneva, NY - GPA: 3.75 B.A., May 2008



)

CHERYL S. STEINBERG

Concor^g^I^ig^ 03301
EXPERIENCE:

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, Concord, New Hampshire

Director, Senior Citizens Law Project, May 2010 - present

Oversee project activities, represent clients focusing on illegal and abusive debt collection practices,
fmancial exploitation and nursing home/assisted living discharges, and provide training and outreach.

Development Director, October 2006 - September 2010

Responsible for grant writing, research and management, and overseeing individual fiindraising campaign.

StaO/Directlng Attorney, January 1999 - August 2007

Served in several capaciUes including general staff attorney, attorney/manager for the Senior Legal Advice
Line, and project director for the New Hampshire Health Law Collaborative.

DISABILITY RIGHTS CENTER-NH, Concord, New Hampshire
Staff Attorney, January 1997-December 1998

Represented persons with disabilities in a variety of civil legal matters, including special education law.

CONNOR AND KITCHEN, Manchester, New Hampshire
Of Counsel, August i996-January 1997

Represented persons in family and special education law matters.

LAW OFFICES OF ROBERT V. JOHNSON. H, Concord, New Hampshire
Associate, October 1995-July 1996

Represented persons in a wide range of matters including personal injury, workers' compensation, probate
and family law.

CHAMBERLAIN AND CONNOR, Manchester, Now Hampshire
Associate, August 1993 - October 1995

Represented persons in family law matters with a conccnti'ation in child advocacy and special education
law.

THE HONORABLE SHANE DEVINE, SENIOR JUDGE
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, Concord, New Hampshire

Extern, September 1992-May 1993

Performed legal research and drafted court orders on a wide range of legal issues.
EDUCATION:

FRANKLIN PIERCE LAW CENTER, Concord, New Hampshire
Juris Doctor, May 1993

SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY, Carbondale, Illinois
Bachelor of Arts, Sociology, August 1983 '

Honors: Sociology Major Honors Award

BAR ADMISSION AND PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS:

Admitted to New Hampshire Bar, October 1993; member. NaUonal Academy of Elder Law Attorneys.



Michelle E. Wangerin
>StrafTbrd, NH 03884

education XI ^ kxa
Boston College Law School , Newton, MA
Juris Doctor

Organizations Public Interest Law Foundation: 2005-2006 Vice President; 2006 Alumni Auction Director; 2005 AucUon
and Activities: Director; 2004 Auction Committee, Corporate Donations Co-Chair

Immigration Law Society (2003-2004): Immigration Trips Donations Committee, Corporate Donations
Chair, Public Interest Immigration Law Spring Break Service Trip

Dartmouth College
Bachelor of Arts, Major: Psychology, Minor: Government ,
Dartmouth Language Study Abroad, Berlin, Germany

PF.I.KVANTKyPERTENCE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance Portsmouth, NH
Staff Attorney/Youth Law Project Director Januaty. 2010-Pre5ent
Provide civil legal advocacy to at risk and court involved youth at the administrative. Circuit Court and New Hampshire Supreme Court
levels to secure necessary educational, health, and community based services. Represent youth at major school disciplinary hearings.
Engage in policy advocacy to reduce exclusionary discipline and increase statewide use of evidence based practices in education and
Juvenile Justice. Prepare written materials and serve as faculty at local and regional trainings on educational rights and the interplay
between special education and Juvenile justice. Provide unbundled legal services to victims of domestic and sexual violence. Represent
victims in the New Hampshire Circuit Courts, Superior Courts and at the New Hampshire Supreme Court.

NH Public Defender

Staff Attorney 2007^anuaiy. 2010
Provided legal defense to indigent juveniles and adults charged with misdemeanor and felony level offenses. Trained mcommg pubhc
defenders on juvenile delinquency law and dispositions. Selected to attend Juvenile Defender Leadership Summit in October 2008.

Disabilities Rights Center
Law Clerk August 2006-January 2007
Served as court appointed guardian ad iitem for children in need of educational services. Negotiated with school districts to ensure
children with disabilities receive proper educational services. Filed complaints with the New Hampshire Department of Education.
Researched legal and policy issues in disability law areas including special education, Medicaid, and reasonable accommodations.

Boston College Legal Assistance Bureau „
Legal Assistant, Women and the Law Clinic through Boston College Law School Fall 2005-Spring 2UU0
Provided legal representation to low income clients in housing, workman's compensation, and domestic relations matters. Drafted and
argued civil motions in family court. Secured SSI and SSDI benefits for clients and assisted in enforclngjudgments.

The Legal Center for People with Disabilities and Older People
Special Education Department Legal Intern ^immer2004
Drafted federal complaint and rebuttal for special education case. Conducted legal research and drafted memoranda on school of choice,
compensatory education, lEP procedure, statute of limitations and discipline issues. .

Araeric«n Bar Association

Commission on Mental and Physical Disabilities Department Intern bummer ivui
Proofread and cite-chccked for the Mental and Physical Disability Law Reporter and the Handbook on Mental Disability Law, by John
Parry, J.D. and Philips GilUam, J.D. Prepared the Reporter's 2001 Title 1 survey. Drafted naajor case headlines for Reporter. Assisted
in outreach to disability law community. Updated and maintained ABA lawyer database.

Community Connections
Community Living Support Assistant . j u i »
Implemented after-school behavioral and academic programs for children with auUsm. Aided m re-cvaluatuig and updating obsolete
programs. Provided respite relief to families of children with autism.

PUBLIC SERVICE

Servmg a three year appointment by the Chief Justice of the New Hampshire Supreme Court to the legislatively created Oversight
Commission on Children's Services, which oversees the Office of the Child Advocate.

Served as the assistant director of the Grace Community Church Food Pantry in Rochester, NH from 2013-2016.



New Hampslih'e Legal AsslstaucB
Prelect Dtrector

Job Description
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OvervlBw: Project Directors perform akey rolo atNHLA and are responsible for
mattagoment of substantive law units. They are expected to take an active i-olo in
managing the work of staff assigned to the project, overseeing project grants, and
promoting tlio objectives ofthe unit. Project directors have the authoiity to delegate
work and coordinate work ofihe unit with other managers and advocates. Project
managers repoit to tire Deputy Director. Duties include but are not limited to;

0 Working witli senior management team and others to develop, and momtoin
Project goals and objectivM.
'  o Identify and work in collaboration with Litigation Director, to pursue ideas

for litigation, including impaot and appellate.
0 Identify and work in collaboraaon with Policy Director to.pursue ideas for

adminislrative and legislative advocacy,
0 Shareinformadon aboutProjectworkthrou^outNHLA.inoludragvla

Litigation Repoit.

o Identify and pursue avenues for pro bono attorneys to fiirther Project
goals. j ^ •

0 Develop and maintain a national perspective on (he legal service and r
other substantive law work porfaiiihig to Pmjeot. (The Project Director is
not bo oiqieotcd to bo'an expert in each component area ofpractice. ^ ^
covered by the Project. The Projeot Director may delegate responsibility
for tracking natlonai dovelopmsntfl in certain pmollc.o areas to other
Pmject members.)

• Having primary losponsibility for grant management wliich hioludes familiarity
with grant terms, obligations and limitations and grant reporting.

0 Ensuring that objeotlvesofProJect and goals and objectives required by grants
fonding the Project are met.

• Working collaboratlvely with Controller to set budget and hours' expectations for
advocates working in Projeot.

• Worklng'in active collaboration with the Development Director to submit reports
and to apply for ongoing grants. Bo alert to new grants or fiinds to support and
sustain work of Project and notijfy Development Dhector of such opportunities. ■ ■

• Working in active collaboration with managing attomoya In each BLO to
regularly supervise legal work done by advooates in Piqject



C: • Working with Deputy Director to resolve areas of conflict between Managbig
Attorney, Project Dii'cctor, and/or individual advooates.

t Woriflng ooUabOL-atlvely withprojcot team members and assisting them in
developing their knowledge and skills.

o Bacourageprojectteammembei-s to purauettainiug to develop
cx)njplementaiy areas of expertise. ^

o Bi oonjunctiouwithDcputy Director, Litigation Director, andManaging
Attorneys, ensui"e that each NHLA advocate has a woilcplan tncluding
professional development goals, and help to Identify opportumtles,
Including training and co-counseling, which would flilfiU the workplan.

» Establishing meohanisms such as team meetings, case aooeptance meetings and
staff training programs to develop the effioaoy and skill of the unit.

• Providing direct services to clients.

• Working coUaboratlvoly to develop comimuiity outreach strateglea.

O



New Hampshire Legal Assistanoo

Staff Attorney

Job Desdiption - Macoh 2008

Qeaeml Resnonaibilitles

The StaffAttorney provides comprehensive legal services to eligible oUenta in
orvll cases in accordance "wifli program guideKnes and the Code of Profteslonel
Responaibility.

Duties

• Hfuidies a diversified caseload of individual services oases in a number
commensurate with his/her experience and competence, and with the demands
ofhis/her community.

• Develops a working knowledge of coinmumty needs, resources and desires
■ aud establishes meaningful contact and lies to conununlty groups,'
organizations, etc.

• hicroases Jcnowled^ and expertise in a particular substantive area so as to be
able to:

a, help train other lawyers and support staff, oto.
b. pavtlolpate in task forces or other groups active in developltig

strategy and tactics to further tlie interesta of low-income
clients in. those areas.

•  Supervises (ho regulai'work ofparalegala aud support staff.
• Reports to supoi'visorB oaseload statistics and general informafion regarding

hi^er activities at regular inten'als.

Relationship

Reports directlyto the Managing Attorney or other direct Supervisor, as
applicable, and to the BxcouUve Director ofNHLA.

Requirements

• Member of the NH Bar or must take first available exam
« Demonstrated commitment to serving bw-income olients,
. Willingness to commit hor/heraelf to tiro program fbr a minimum of two years.
•  PrioiTegal services exparlence desirable.



Now Hampshiro Legal Assistanoe

,  Paralegal

Job Dosoriptioii - Maroh 2008

fianpfflt Responsibilities

The paralegal provides paraprofossional legal services to eUgiblo clients in olvil omm in
aoooidmoo with piogrwn guidelines andunder the direct supervision of an attorney, according to
Iho Codo of Professional Responsibility.

Dutiea

A. DUeot Client Services

•  Biiervlews eligible clients, identifying theUaegal problems. ■
• NegoUatea on tlieir bcbalfwith oieditors, landloids, utility companies and

governmental agencies.
. Represents clients at administrative hearings - repiPsentaUon ̂ t^s

identification, preparation, and presentation of evidence, and the drafting of legal
.memoranda. ^ .

« Asaista NHLA attorneys in preparations for court hearings as needed.

B. Indirect Client ServioM

. Devebps one oi* more areas of expertise throughinvolvemcnt in case worir and
NflLA task forces in order to better* serve individual clients and to have in-put Indeveloping progr^ goals in the areas oflmpaot litigation and legisktlon. .

• Becomes involved in community organizatbna to assist tiiem in realizing their
logaltights and to make them aware of the services NHLA offers.

® Participates in community education projects.

C. hi-house Responsibilities

•  Partioipates in in-house training programs as required.
• Other reasonable requests, as the needs of the program may require.

• ;RBlfltionshiD

Reports directly to the Maiiagbg Attorney or Project Director.

• ';Requ(rementa

* Bfldhelor'a degree or 2"4 years equivalent exporionco. ^
• Ability to oommunloate effectively both orally and in writing.
. DMU-etoworicwithsympathyfbrthepwhlemsofthelow-incomQoommumty.


